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Up to 234,741 shares of Class B Common Stock at $4.26 per share. 
 

Minimum Purchase: 57 shares at $4.26 each, for a total of $247.08 
 

Total offering amount:  Up to $999,996.66 
 

We are offering a maximum of 234,741 shares of Class B common stock, par value $0.001 per share                  
(the “Class B Common Stock”) of Alkane Truck Company, a Georgia corporation formed on June 24, 2011                 
(the “Company”) on a “best efforts” basis. We have met the target amount set when we launched this offering.                   
We will accept oversubscriptions in excess of the target offering amount up to $999,996.66 on a first come,                  
first served basis. See “Plan of Distribution” on page 21 and “Our Securities” on page 19 for a description of                    
our shares. 

 Number 
of Shares 

Price to Public (1) Underwriting 
Discounts and 

Commissions (2) 
 
 

Proceeds to Issuer (3) 

Per Common Share 1 $4.26 $0.00 $ 
 
 
 

Target Offering 
Amount 
 

5,867 $24,993.42 $0.00 $24,993.42 
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Maximum Offering 
Amount 

234,741 $999,996.66 $0.00 $999,996.66 

(1) The fee for posting on Startengine.com is 5% of the total raised. This fee is being split between                  
the Company and those participating in the offering. A 2.5% surcharge fee, $0.1065 per share               
purchased, will be added to the investment for each share purchased. This surcharge is in addition                
to the share price and is not calculated as a portion of the target offering amount or maximum                  
offering amount. 

(2) We do not intend to use commissioned sales agents or underwriters. 

(3) Does not include expenses of the offering, including professional fees, costs of blue sky              
compliance, escrow fees and the fees and costs of posting offering information on             
Startengine.com. See “Use of Proceeds” and “Plan of Distribution”. 

● Investors may cancel an investment commitment until 48 hours prior to the deadline identified              
in the issuer’s offering materials. 

● Prior to July 20, 2018, we may conduct multiple closings of the offering early if we provide                 
notice about the new offering deadline at least five business days prior to such new offering                
deadline (absent a material change that would require an extension of the offering and              
reconfirmation of the investment commitment). 

● If an investor does not cancel an investment commitment at least 48 hours prior to July 20, 2018                  
(or such earlier closing), his or her funds will be released to us upon a closing of the offering                   
and he or she will receive securities in exchange for his or her investment. 

● If we notify investors of a material change to the offering and you do not reconfirm your                 
investment commitment thereafter, your investment commitment will be cancelled and your           
committed funds will be returned to you. 

Generally, no sale may be made to you in this offering if the aggregate purchase price you pay is                   
more than 10% of the greater of your annual income or net worth. Different rules apply to accredited                  
investors and non-natural persons. Before making any representation that your investment does not             
exceed applicable thresholds, we encourage you to review Rule 100 of Regulation Crowdfunding. For              
general information on investing, we encourage you to refer to www.investor.gov. 

There is currently no trading market for our Class B Common Stock and we cannot guarantee                
that such a trading market will ever exist. 

These are speculative securities. A crowdfunding investment involves significant risks. You           
should not invest any funds in this offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment. In                  
making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the                
terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been               
recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority.             
Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document. See               
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“Risk Factors” beginning on page . 

The United States Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of or give                
its approval to any securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or                    
completeness of any offering statement or other solicitation materials. These securities are offered             
pursuant to an exemption from registration with the Commission; however, the Commission has not              
made an independent determination that the securities offered are exempt from registration. 

You should rely only on the information contained in this offering statement prepared by or on                
behalf of us. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with information different from, or in                 
addition to, that contained in this offering statement. This offering statement is an offer to sell only the                  
Common Stock offered hereby and only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to                
do so. The information contained in this offering statement is current only as of its date. 
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NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Certain of the statements set forth in this offering statement constitute “Forward Looking             
Statements.” Forward-looking statements include, without limitation, any statement that may predict, forecast,            
indicate, or imply future results, performance or achievements, and may contain the words “estimate,”              
“project,” “intend,” “forecast,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “planning,” “expect,” “believe,” “will likely,” “should,”           
“could,” “would,” “may” or words or expressions of similar meaning. All such forward-looking statements              
involve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those risks described herein. Therefore,              
prospective Investors are cautioned that there also can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements               
included in this offering statement will prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent to                  
the forward-looking statements included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a                
representation or warranty by the Company or any other person that the objectives and plans of the Company                  
will be achieved in any specified time frame, if at all.  

The Company’s forward-looking statements are based on management’s current expectations and           
assumptions regarding the Company’s business and performance, the economy and other future conditions             
and forecasts of future events, circumstances and results. As with any projection or forecast, forward-looking               
statements are inherently susceptible to uncertainty and changes in circumstances. The Company’s actual             
results may vary materially from those expressed or implied in its forward-looking statements.  

Important factors that may cause the actual results to differ from those expressed within may include,                
but are not limited to: 

The success or failure of the Company’s efforts to successfully market its products and services as scheduled; 

● The Company’s ability to attract, build, and maintain a customer base;  
● The Company’s ability to attract and retain quality employees; 
● The effects of changing economic conditions; and 
● The ability of the Company to obtain adequate debt or other financing if only a fraction of this                  

offering is sold; 

These along with other risks, which are described under the “Risk Factors” section starting on page                
may be described in future communications to stockholders. Except to the extent required by applicable laws                
or rules, the Company makes no representation and undertakes no obligation to update the forward looking                
information to reflect actual results or changes in assumptions or other factors that could affect those                
statements. 

SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING 

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the detailed information appearing elsewhere in               
this offering statement. Although the offering statement may provide potential Investors with some             
references to subject headings, the information appearing under those headings is not necessarily a complete               
or exclusive discussion or description of that subject. References in this offering statement to the “Company,”                
“Alkane”, “we,” “us” and “our” are to Alkane Truck Company. 
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Our Company 

Alkane Truck Company, Inc. (Alkane) was formed in 2011, and designs, develops and markets zero               
emission and near zero emission alternative fueled trucks. Alkane is an emerging uniquely competitive OEM               
alternative fuel truck company utilizing strategic global supply agreements with leading component            
manufacturers (ie: chassis & cab from China and engine, transmission and fuel system, etc. from the U.S.) to                  
minimize the significant financial investment required for the design, compliance, tooling and production             
facilities of a typical OEM truck manufacturer. 

 

All of Alkane’s medium- and heavy-duty trucks are shipped to Alkane as “knock-down’ kits from               
each component manufacturer. The components are EPA/CARB/DOT tested and approved as required before             
being integrated and assembled at an Alkane-certified assembly facility by skilled American workers. This              
production/assembly model qualifies Alkane as a U.S. OEM (original equipment manufacturer) as the             
domestic value-add content exceeds 51%. This designation allows Alkane to issue its own VIN (vehicle               
identification numbers), avoiding hundreds of millions of dollars in truck body/component tooling and facility              
infrastructure expense. 

 

Alkane is ready to launch a new line of alternative fuel and clean burning trucks in North America,                  
Latin America and South America. Alkane’s line of Class 6 thru Class 8 vehicle OEM trucks will operate on                   
a ground-breaking Zero Emission (“ZEV”) electric battery power, on Near-Zero Emission Compressed            
Natural Gas (CNG), Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) and Renewable Natural Gas (RNG) engines and on               
Low-Emission Liquid Propane Autogas (LPG) engines. 

 

The Offering 

The Company is offering a minimum of 5,867 shares (the “Target Offering Amount”) of Class B                
Common Stock (each, a “Share”) and a maximum of 234,741 Shares (the “Maximum Offering Amount”) on a                 
“best efforts” basis, at a price per share of $4.26.  

Since the Target Offering Amount has been reached, the offering may continue until July 20, 2018                
(which date may be extended at our option) or the date when all shares have been sold (the “Offering                   
Period”). At any time during the Offering Period, the Company may accept and finalize your investment. 

The offering price per Share has been arbitrarily determined by the Company. The Company may, in                
the future, sell Shares for a higher or lower price per Share than that for which the Shares are being sold in                      
this offering. In determining such future prices, the Board of Directors of the Company will take into                 
consideration such factors as they deem necessary, which may include the current status, operations and               
results of the Company, the requirements for additional capital, market factors, and other factors that may not                 
be known until the applicable time.  

In the future the Company may value its shares using different methodologies, including, without              
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limitation valuations based on liquidation value, book value and earnings value, and third parties may offer                
different prices for the Shares.  

Upon completion of the offering, assuming that the Maximum Offering Amount has been sold, there               
will be 569,741 shares of Class B Common Stock outstanding. The Company has no warrants, options, or                 
other derivatives (such as convertible promissory notes, etc.) outstanding which may result in the issuance of                
any additional shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock.  

The following table sets forth the number of shares of Class B Common Stock issued and outstanding                 
prior to and following this offering.  

Securities Offered 234,741 (maximum shares of Class 
B Common Stock) 

Shares of Class B Common Stock outstanding pre-offering  
 

185,000 

Maximum Number of Shares of Class B Common Stock outstanding 
post-offering (excluding shares which may be issued outside this 
offering) 

419,741 

The net proceeds of this offering will be used primarily to purchase inventory and working capital                
needs or to undertake marketing efforts if only the Target Offering Amount is sold.  

Investing in our Class B Common Stock involves a high degree of risk. As an investor you should be                   
able to bear a complete loss of your investment. You should carefully consider the information set forth in the                   
“Risk Factors” section beginning on page  of this offering statement. 

BUSINESS 

Company Background and General Overview 

Alkane Truck Company, formerly known as Noble Automotive Group, Inc., is a corporation formed              
under the laws of Georgia on June 24, 2011. On December 30, 2015, Alkane Truck Company, which was a                   
wholly owned subsidiary of Noble Automotive Group, Inc. (“Noble”) merged with and into Noble, with               
Noble surviving and changing its name to Alkane Truck Company. Prior to the name change and                
consolidation, Noble Automotive Group, Inc. (a Georgia corporation) owned three wholly owned            
subsidiaries: Vision Motor Company (a Delaware corporation), Valor Motor Company (a Delaware            
corporation), and Alkane Truck Company (a Georgia corporation).  

Effective as of December 30, 2015, Valor Motor Company and Alkane Truck Company merged into               
the parent company under the new name, Alkane Truck Company. Since December 30, 2015, the Company                
operates as Alkane Truck Company and has one wholly owned subsidiary, Vision Motor Company (a               
Delaware corporation), which does not currently have any operations. All operations are in the Company.  

The Company has been preparing, through rigorous testing, research and development, a new line of               
alternative fuel and clean burning trucks to fill market voids in North America, Latin America and South                 
America. Alkane’s line of Class 6 thru Class 8 vehicle OEM trucks will operate on a ground-breaking Zero                  
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Emission (“ZEV”) electric battery power, on Near-Zero Emission Compressed Natural Gas (CNG), Liquefied             
Natural Gas (LNG) and Renewable Natural Gas (RNG) engines and on Low-Emission Liquid Propane              
Autogas (LPG) engines. 

The Company is an ‘assembler’ of vehicles as opposed to a manufacturer of vehicles. This distinction                
is an important one. The role of ‘assembler’ eliminates the debt burden of purchasing hundreds of millions of                  
dollars in stamping and other high-priced production equipment required to manufacture vehicles from the              
ground up.  

Instead, our formula is very simple: seek out the industry’s best components at the best prices                
available worldwide and contract with those manufacturers already equipped to produce the vehicle parts.              
Having bypassed investment in a cumbersome manufacturing infrastructure interested in serving a niche             
market rather than mass production, Alkane is positioned to move straight to assembling vehicles. Technology               
changes quickly; in addition to the obvious front-end cost savings, Alkane is free to assimilate new innovation                 
without being hampered by equipment outdated before it can even be fully depreciated. This smart model will                 
keep Company a contemporary enterprise from the beginning.  

Alkane purchases engines, transmissions, fuel systems, axles, rims, tires, seats, seat belts, brake             
systems - 66% of all components - from the finest manufacturers in the United States. In addition to keeping                   
Americans employed, this important benchmark qualifies Alkane to sell our specialty vehicles to the US               
government. We are able to purchase gliders (vehicle body without drive train) from Foton-Daimler and               
Agrale at very competitive prices and integrate US drive trains and fuel system components from contracted                
suppliers at equally favorable prices. This allows us to sell our natural gas fueled trucks at prices comparable                  
to diesel or gasoline trucks of the same size and weight class.  

We contract for the highest quality parts and components already in production by experienced              
manufacturers. To purchase and outfit such facilities could cost upwards of $500,000,000; we avoid that               
expense and focus our attention, instead, on securing only the best engineers, designers and suppliers. In                
addition, contracting with select third-party quality producers allows us access to name brand components              
without the fear of competition with larger manufacturers. For example, we purchase our 8.8 liter PSI block                 
engines from a third party source in business to sell name brand engines powered by natural gas.  

We currently contract with some of the most respected companies in the industry. Alkane is the Agent                 
of Service for the North American market for Foton, from whom we purchase cabs and frames for our Class 6                    
and our Class 7 delivery trucks; Foton manufactures and sells 600,000 trucks annually worldwide.  

For our Class 6 and Class 7 chassis, Alkane has completed the required DOT, EPA, and CARB                 
certifications. This time-consuming and expensive process is required in order to sell vehicles in the North                
American market. Based on timing and funding levels of Alkane’s CF Funding campaign, we plan to be in                  
production with our Class 7 Low Emission Propane Truck in the Spring of 2018, our Class 6 Near-Zero                  
Emission electric truck in the Summer of 2018, and our Near Zero Natural Gas Truck in Late-Summer 2018.  

Agrale of Brazil manufactures the body of our on-road/off-road, heavy-duty vehicle, the rugged             
Alkane Dominator, recently showcased as part of the LINE-X exhibition at the prestigious SEMA Show in                
Las Vegas, Nevada. Agrale manufactures all vehicles for the Brazilian military - vehicles designed to               
negotiate some of the most challenging terrain in the world. Alkane Truck Company is the Agent of Service                  
for Agrale for the North American market, the first time they have offered this exclusive role to anyone                  
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outside of Brazil.  

We plan to begin production of the Dominator shortly after launching the Zero Emission, Near-Zero               
Emission, and Low Emission trucks referenced earlier. 

We are in the process of setting up an internal call center charged with contacting an extensive network of 
thousands of dealerships in the U.S., Canada, and Mexico for the purpose of selecting a few hundred of the 
most trusted and committed dealerships to represent Alkane’s line of alternative fuel vehicles.  These 
carefully chosen dealerships will be fully-equipped and trained to sell and service for our end-customers in 
close proximity to their place of business.  We also expect there will be the need for direct sales National 
Accounts at the customer’s request which will be supported by Alkane National Account Managers.  

Trends in Customer Preferences and Spending 

Alkane Truck Company has developed a marketing outreach to established dealers, partnering with             
over 80 dealership locations throughout the United States and Canada. Established dealership locations must              
have proven service capability to sell and oversee the care of Alkane vehicles and owners throughout the                 
lifetime of each vehicle. Alkane Truck Company will have three vehicle types available to the market over the                  
next three years. Alkane Truck Company’s liquid propane autogas-powered class 7 is the first in its class to be                   
designed from the ground up, front-to-back, to run on LPG. Available in 26,000 and 33,000 GVW classes,                 
this cab over is the perfect inner-city solution.  

The cab-over design improves visibility while negotiating in tight areas and the hi-torque engine runs               
extremely quiet without any black smoke. The Alkane class 8 features world standard fuel economy powered                
by LPG or CNG. This truck is scheduled for DOT compliance testing in 2018, after which Alkane will begin                   
fulfilling advance dealer orders. The DominatorTM is a rugged 4WD workhorse, capable of hauling your               
car--with the garage still attached! Built with military DNA, this humvee-type vehicle can be fitted for                
specialty applications such as fire and rescue, police, forestry and any other governmental or industrial need.                
With 345 hp at 5400 rpm and torque to spare, the 4WD Alkane DominatorTM can handle any road                  
conditions. Snow, mud, standing water or rugged off-road terrain is no match for this 6L V8 power house.                  
Paired with the choice of a 6-speed automatic or manual transmission, an added feature is low-cost liquid                 
propane as an alternative fuel. Power Solutions International, known for its engineering excellence, has              
designed this big block to offer the same torque curve as gasoline with diesel-like performance. 

The Company’s website is http://www.alkanetruckcompany.com/. 

The Market 

The Challenge  

One of the important global issues of the 21st century is reversing the degradation and harmful effects                 
of emissions in our air quality. There is mounting evidence that diesel exhaust poses major health hazards to                  
hundreds of millions of people. Diesel exhaust has been classified as a potential human carcinogen by the                 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) and irritates the eyes, nose, throat and lungs. For example,               
recent EPA occupational health studies of railroad, dock, trucking, and bus garage workers exposed to high                
levels of diesel exhaust over many years consistently demonstrate a 20 to 50% increase in the risk of lung                   
cancer. According to another EPA report presented at an alternative fuel GNA Gamechanger seminar, 40% or                

 
9 

 



129 million of the U.S. population live in non-attainment counties below the acceptable national air quality                
standard.  

 

Transportation and specifically medium-duty to heavy-duty trucks are the greatest consumers of            
diesel fuel and generate the greatest amount of diesel emissions (oxides of nitrogen (NOx) and particulate                
matter (soot)). An EMFAC report on California diesel consumption reported Medium-Duty and Heavy-Duty             
trucks consumed over 65% of the annual diesel fuel sold and, as a result, are the major contributors to the                    
serious diesel-related emissions in the state.  

The Solution: 
The solution is to support technology and funding of alternative fueled vehicles and begin to reduce the use of 
gasoline and diesel fuel.  A September 2017 Analyst Report from Craig-Hallum on the Alternative Vehicles 
and Fuels Industry reported: 
 

*China’s Vice-Minister of Industry and Technology announced they are accelerating the  
country’s move to alternative fueled vehicles away from diesel and gasoline.  

 
*Britain and France plan to ban the sale of new gasoline and diesel vehicles by 2040.  

 
The report goes on to say that OEMs must face the reality that gasoline & diesel may not be dominating fuels 
of the future and that OEMs who are “first to market” with viable emission reduction solutions will have a 
major competitive advantage and a leg up on other market participants as this shift to alternative fuel unfolds. 
  
In the United States, California Governor Brown has challenged California to reduce gasoline and diesel 
consumption by 50% and other states are introducing their own alternative fuel sustainability programs.  
 
Alkane Truck Company, Inc. (Alkane) designs, develops and markets affordable Medium-Duty and 
Heavy-Duty zero emission and near zero emission alternative fueled trucks and will be in the “First 
To Market” group of alternative fuel solutions.  
 
The projected addressed market for alternative fueled medium-duty and heavy-duty trucks will be in the 
multi- billions of dollars.  For example, based on today’s estimated prices, if Alkane, at some point in the 
future, produced a quantity of just 250 trucks per month or 3,000 per year for each of its top three alternative 
fuel truck models (ie:  electric, natural gas, and propane), projected Alkane annual revenue would exceed $1 
billion dollars. 
 
Alkane is at the forefront of the global transition to lower emission transportation. Over one billion dollars of 
state, federal, and provincial incentive funds will become available starting in 2018 to help financially justify 
fleet owners making the decision to forego new diesel truck purchases and move to low emission 
transportation.  Here is an example of a few of the programs: 
 

1. VW Mitigation Trust Fund. As a result of Volkswagen cheating the U.S. EPA/CARB certification              
system, the company has agreed to a court settlement of $6.8 billion dollars for projects               
designed to reduce diesel-related emissions. These funds will be used to upgrade or replace              
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aging diesel-powered vehicles with new, clean burning engines. Alkane is well positioned to             
take advantage of multiple U.S. opportunities projected to begin in 2018.  

 
2. California Near-Zero NOx and Renewable Natural Gas (RNG) Programs. Some of the worst air              

quality conditions in America are in populous regions of California. From the Governor to CARB               
(California Resources Board) to a handful of Regional Air Quality Districts, hundreds of millions              
of dollars are being invested in technologies to improve air quality or Calf. faces threatened               
cutbacks in federal support. Reducing diesel-related emissions (NOx and particulate matter)           
with alternative fuels is a priority for the Golden State. California is using Cap & Trade tax                 
revenue to provide $90,000/truck rebate incentives for Near Zero Electric trucks,           
$40,000/truck rebate incentive for 12L Near Zero Emission natural gas trucks, and            
$10,000/truck rebate incentive for 9L Near Zero Emission natural gas trucks. These zero and              
near-zero emission engines will be installed in Alkane trucks. 

3. Canada Clean Air Programs. Provincial-funded fleet incentive programs are being launched in            
Quebec, Ontario, and British Columbia. Clean Air Incentives in Ontario starting in 2018 are for               
up to $75,000 per truck. A team from Canada traveled to Alkane Truck Company corporate               
headquarters in August 2017 to express interest in bringing Alkane products to Quebec. 

 
4. Mexico and Latin America. The 2017 deregulation of government fuel subsidies and the             

imposition of delivery restrictions to mitigate poor air quality in inner cities are major              
incentives in Mexico for fleets to begin transitioning away from diesel fuel toward alternative              
fuels. Alkane is engaged in discussions with local Mexican natural gas and propane fuel              
suppliers to wrap fueling contract incentives into the cost of purchasing an 
Alkane alternative fuel truck. 

 
5. U.S. Corporate Sustainability Programs. Many U.S. corporations have documented sustainability          

and carbon footprint reduction programs. Logistical movement of goods and services is a major              
source of pollution for many of these companies. Transitioning to alternative fueled vehicles is a               
growing movement for fleets looking to maintain business relationships with sustainability           
customers.  

Alkane will employ a combination of dealerships, national account management, and industry            
awareness programs to maximize market penetration and build the Alkane brand.  

 

Growth and Sales Plan 

Barriers to Entry 

EPA, DOT, and CARB certifications are time consuming and expensive—but mandatory or preferred             
in most North, Central and South American markets. The Chinese have expressed no interest in undertaking                
these oppressive regulatory barriers to entry. To date, Alkane Truck Company has invested millions of dollars                
over several years to handpick world class suppliers, engineers, and contract assemblers in preparation for a                
commercial launch ramp. Our streamlined business model supports our role as assemblers and integrators of               
only the finest value-added components. We engineered the designs of the completed trucks and are the                
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owners of the proprietary rights of those designs; we ensure that all components used are not an infringement                  
on any other company’s rights. We believe the reluctance of foreign manufacturers to navigate the lengthy                
and costly certification process gives Alkane a significant competitive growth advantage as a “first to market”                
player in this emerging market.  

 
Supply Chain 

In most cases, Alkane deals directly with component manufacturers and maintains back-up suppliers             
should the need arise. We purchase the chassis/cabs from China such that we maintain a continuous flow of                  
inventory to our contracted assemblers. Use of Proceeds will allow Alkane to accelerate the inventory               
pipeline—scheduling quantities for manufacture in China, cargo on the water in-route to the U.S., and               
work-in-progress by our assemblers.  

As mentioned, all medium- and heavy-duty trucks are shipped to Alkane as “knockdown kits” from               
our manufacturing sources. The term ‘knockdown’ is used to describe a vehicle crated as parts as opposed to                  
an assembled vehicle.  

Importing vehicles as knockdown kits or an assemblage of parts allows Alkane up to a 70% reduction                 
in shipping costs and more favorable tax treatment. This makes economic sense since tariffs and duties                
represent a large percentage of import/export expense. 

 
Alkane’s Certified Assembler To Support Our Scalable Growth Plan 

In October, 2017, Alkane announced an agreement to have Harrison Truck Center (“HTC”) become              
Alkane’s Certified “knockdown kit” assembler. Headquartered in Elk Run Heights, Iowa, Harrison Truck             
Centers has been in business since the late 60s. HTC began as a truck equipment body builder and later                   
became an Oshkosh truck dealer. In the late 90s, HTC acquired its first Freightliner dealership in Iowa and                  
has added Freightliner or Western Star dealerships in Iowa and four more locations in southern Minnesota.                
From 1997 to 2017, Harrison has grown from 40 to 400 associates and has become a Midwest leader in truck                    
sales and service. In addition, HTC is one of the top glider kit builders in the United States—making                  
Harrison Truck Centers a perfect fit for Alkane’s knock-down assembly operation.  

Harrison’s technical and production capabilities in truck assembly are impressive. Their market            
leadership role in assembling production volumes of glider kits will allow Alkane accelerated scalability              
without the typical start-up learning curve saving millions of dollars.  

Sales Plan 

Here is the planned roll-out of Alkane’s line of environmentally-friendly trucks. Planned launch dates              
are subject to timing and funding levels achieved in our capital campaign: 

Spring 2018 Alkane Class 7 Low Emission Propane Truck 
Certified PSI 8.8L Propane Engine with Bi-Phase Liquid Injection 

 
Summer 2018 Alkane Class 6 Zero Emission Electric Truck 
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evLabs Electric Powertrain and Battery Management System 
325 HP & 480 ft lbs torque –  
Eligible for many Zero Emission Vehicle (ZEV) incentive programs. 

 
Late-Summer 2018 Alkane Class 7 Near Zero Natural Gas Truck 

Certified Cummins/Westport Near Zero 9L engine. 
Eligible for state and federal Near Zero incentive programs. 

 
Late 2018 Alkane Class 8 Near Zero Natural Gas Truck 

Certified Cummins/Westport Near Zero 12L engine. 
Eligible in California for Near Zero incentive of $40,000/truck. 

 
Late 2018 The Dominator – All Terrain and Government Service Truck 

Fills void left by the popular Hummer H1 and H2 
Available in multiple fuel options including liquid propane and  
natural gas.  The Dominator launch will be subject to funding  
levels achieved with our electric, natural gas, and propane  
solutions.  

The projected addressed market for alternative fueled medium-duty and heavy-duty trucks will be in              
the multi- billions of dollars. For example, based on today’s estimated prices, if Alkane, at some point in the                   
future, produced a quantity of just 250 trucks per month or 3,000 per year for each of its top three alternative                     
fuel truck models (ie: electric, natural gas, and propane), projected Alkane annual revenue would exceed $1                
billion dollar 

Employees  

The Alkane management team consists of Robert Smith III, Founder, Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), Chief               
Financial Officer and Secretary and Miguel Pena, Operations Manager. As sales accelerate, additional             
personnel will be hired as needed to allow Mr. Smith time to focus his efforts on meeting Alkane’s business                   
objectives.  

The Company has 3 other employees at this time.  

Legal Proceedings 

There are no legal proceedings material to our business of financial condition pending and, to the best                 
of our knowledge, there are no such legal proceedings contemplated or threatened. 

Intellectual Property 

The Company owns the trademark on the “Alkane Dominator™” product and has a trademark o the                
stylized Alkane logo.  

Indebtedness 

Since 2012, Mr. Smith advanced funds to the Company, which are repayable by the Company with                
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6.25% annual interest, but for which no promissory note or other agreement was signed at the time.  

Prior to January 1, 2014, the Company received funding from Mr. Smith of $820,460 and repaid                
principal of $163,043, resulting in a loan balance of $657,417 as of December 31, 2013.  

During 2014, Mr. Smith advanced the Company an additional $747,939, and Mr. Smith repaid              
principal of $125,346 on behalf of the Company, resulting in a loan balance of $1,280,010 as of December 31,                   
2014.  

During 2015, Mr. Smith advanced the Company an additional $748,012, and Mr. Smith repaid              
principal of $104,349 on behalf of the Company, resulting in a loan balance of $1,923,673 as of December 31,                   
2015.  

On November 10, 2016, the Company entered into a promissory note with Mr. Smith to evidence the                 
remaining outstanding amount due and payable to Mr. Smith for these funds that were advanced, together                
with interest thereon, which totaled $2,013,845. The promissory note carries interest at 6.25% and all amounts                
due thereunder are due and payable on November 10, 2020.  

Interest expense related to these amounts advanced by Mr. Smith totaled $194,801 and $102,087 for               
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, all of which was paid-in-full during the years                 
incurred. As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, there was no outstanding interest due on these loans.  

Concurrent Offerings 

None 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 

As of December 31, 2016, the date of the financial statements included in this Offering               
Memorandum, the Company had only recently commenced planned principal operations. The Company is             
dependent upon additional capital resources for expansion to its planned full scale operations and is subject to                 
significant risks and uncertainties; including failing to secure additional funding to operationalize the             
Company’s planned operations.  

As of December 31, 2016, our independent registered public accounting firm has raised substantial              
doubt regarding our ability to continue as a going concern. As noted in our financial statements, we reported                  
recurring losses and we have not generated positive cash flows from operations. See “Risk Factors-Our               
independent registered public accounting firm has raised substantial doubt regarding our ability to continue as               
a going concern.” 

Results for Year Ended 12/31/2016 and 12/31/2015 

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company had revenues of $251,995, cost of goods                 
sold of $175,007, and a gross profit of $76,988. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, the Company                   
had revenues of $221,160, cost of goods sold of $269,414 and a net loss of $48,254. The Company attributes                   
the change from a net loss in 2015 to gross profits in 2016 to its decrease in cost of goods. The higher costs of                        
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goods in 2015 was due to the costs associated with manufacturing a show vehicle.  

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016, the company had total operating costs of $772,332 and                 
during the same period in 2015, the Company had total operating costs of $1,003,786. The increase in                 
operating costs from 2015 to 2016 was due to advanced engineering costs.  

Results for Year Ended 12/31/2017 

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, the company had non-product revenues of              
approximately $250,000, and no product revenues. Meeting the required DOT/NHTSA requirements is a             
prerequisite to being able to legally generate product revenue.  Product revenue is expected to begin in 2018. 

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, the company had a total operating cost of $920,799.                 
The increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2017 was primarily due to an increase in General and                  
Administrative costs, and Professional Services, as a result of the company pursuing DOT/NHTSA testing. 

The Company’s operating costs were comprised of the following: 

 Fiscal Year Ended 
December 17, 2017 

Fiscal Year Ended 
December 31, 2016 

Fiscal Year Ended 
December 31, 2015 

Research and 
Development 

$30,002 $42,273 $359,545 

General and 
Administrative 

$267,698 $192,122 $256,401 

Compensation and 
Benefits 

$228,603 $198,217 $211,878 

Professional Services $152,797 $115,169 $160,171 

Sales and Marketing $233,204 $215,748 $12,114 

Depreciation and 
Amortization 

$8,495 $8,803 $3,677 

 

As a result of the foregoing, estimated loss from operations will be $845,000 for fiscal year ending December                  
31, 2017 compared to $695,344 and $1,052,040 for fiscal years ending December 31, 2016 and December 31,                 
2015 respectively.   

 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had $63,970 of cash and cash equivalents, $415,166 of accounts                 
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receivable and $886,182 of inventory, for total current assets of $1,365,318. As of December 31, 2015, the                 
Company had $29,833 of cash and cash equivalents, $91,010 of accounts receivable and $833,004 of               
inventory, for total current assets of $953,847. The Company attributes this increase in total current assets to                 
its increase in accounts receivable. 

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had accounts payable of $213,2016, $3,462,138 due to related                
parties, and $11,800 of deferred revenue, for total current liabilities of $3,687,144. As of December 31,                
2015,the Company had accounts payable of $213,206, $2,492,454 due to related parties, and $11,800 of               
deferred revenue, for total current liabilities of $2,717,460. The Company attributes this increase in total               
current liabilities due to amounts to due to related parties. 

The CEO of the Company regularly issues advances, makes purchases on behalf of the Company, and repays                 
loans and related interest on behalf of the Company to fund operations. During the year ended December 31,                  
2016 and 2015, the CEO paid total loan principal and interest of $364,234 and $206,436 on behalf of the                   
Company, respectively. 

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company owed the CEO $3,690,121 and $2,698,974, respectively.                
The CEO owns another company, to which Alkane Truck Company advances funds and makes payments on                
behalf of. Amounts receivable from this company totaled $227,983 and $206,520 as of December 31, 2016                
and 2015, respectively. Since these receivables and payables are with the same party, they have been netted to                  
due to related parties on the balance sheet. 

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had closed on the sale of 21,712 shares at $4.26 a share in this                     
Regulation CF Offering. These proceeds are to be used to purchase inventory. 

As of 12/31/2017, the company’s net working capital was $149,476.  

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 

The following is information about the Company’s director and any persons occupying a similar              
status or performing a similar function. The address for the Company’s Director is c/o Alkane Truck                
Company, 1053 London Street, Myrtle Beach, South Carolina 29577. 

Robert Smith III has served a Director of the Company since June 4, 2011. Mr. Smith is the                  
Company’s sole Director. Mr. Smith is not employed by any other employer.  

OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY 

The following is information about the Company’s officers:  

Robert Smith III – Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary 

Mr. Smith is the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, a position he has held since June 4, 2011. As                  
our CEO, Mr. Smith has overall responsibility for all of the operations of the Company. Since June 4, 2011,                   
Mr. Smith has also served as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and Secretary. Mr. Smith has not held                  
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any other officer positions with the Company. 

Mr. Smith has a degree in Computer Science from Columbia Commercial College and has served as                
President of three successful companies: banking software development and implementation, factory building            
micro computers and software development for the first pre-paid cellular telephone platform. 

Mr. Smith has over 30 years’ experience in the import/export industry and has traveled worldwide               
most of his life throughout China, Russia, CIS, Central America, Mexico and South America. He has the                 
necessary business skills to direct the operations of the Company with primary emphasis on streamlining               
operations, continued development of the latest technologies and implementation of those technologies in a              
time-efficient manner. 

Miguel Pena - Operations Manager 

Mr. Pena is the Company’s Operations Manager, a position he has held since September 2016. In this                 
position, Mr. Pena has responsibility for overseeing the assembly operations for all the vehicles the company                
plans to assemble. From September 2014 to September 2016, Mr. Pena was General Manager of Alkane                
Motors Dominicana, an authorized dealer of Alkane Truck Company in the Dominican Republic, in which               
position Mr. Pena was responsible for all operations of the company in the Dominican Republic, including                
creating the distribution network for the company’s vehicles, positioning the brand, establishing 3 dealer              
locations as well as introducing the Class 7 diesel version, 4x4 Mako Pickup and the 16 Passenger Maxi-van                  
into the Dominican market.  

From November 2010 to September 2014, Mr. Pena was the Plant Manager for Prestige Structural               
Aggregates in the Dominican Republic, in which position Mr. Pena was responsible for the operations of an                 
aggregate mine. From June 2004 to September 2015, Mr. Pena was the Sales Manager for Dominican                
Coralstone, S.A., in the Dominican Republic, in which position Mr. Pena was responsible for all sales for a                  
marble tile plant.  

Mr. Pena has over 10 years of experience as plant manager for several industries that required                
industrial procedures, assembling products from raw materials to finished goods.  

Mr. Pena is a graduate from Universidad de Belgrano, Argentina, with a degree in international               
business. Being fluent in Spanish, Mr. Pena is a great asset for Alkane Truck Company’s international market                 
sales, Mr. Pena owns an international dealership in the Dominican Republic called Alkane Motors              
Dominicana which sales and distributes all Alkane products. 

Mr. Pena is not employed by any other employer. 

In October 2016, Mr. Bob Denton, the Company’s prior Chief Financial Officer from 2014 to 2016,                
and Stephen Rayborn, the Company’s prior Vice President of Global Sales, left the Company. Mr. Rayborn                
and Mr. Denton were in the real estate business before working for Alkane Truck Company, and were                 
recently offered an opportunity from a real estate developer to manage and sale a real estate development                 
project, and both left the Company to pursue that opportunity.. Their departure was amicable and not the                 
result of any disagreement between them and the Company. 

During the past five years, none of the persons identified above has been convicted in a criminal                 
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proceeding, excluding traffic violations or other minor offenses.  

No Disqualification 

With respect to the Company, any predecessor of the Company, any affiliated issuer, any director,               
officer, general partner or managing member of the Company, any beneficial owner of 20% or more of the                  
Company’s outstanding voting equity securities, any promoter connected with the Company in any capacity at               
the time of such sale, any person that has been or will be paid (directly or indirectly) remuneration for                   
solicitation of purchasers in connection with such sale of securities, or any general partner, director, officer or                 
managing member of any such solicitor, prior to the date of this offering statement, no such person (each, a                   
“Covered Person”) is disqualified from relying on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 503                 
thereunder.  

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

Compensation of Executive Officers 

The Company’s CEO, CFO and Secretary, Mr. Smith, does not receive a salary. Mr. Pena, the                
Company’s Operations Manager, receives a salary of $1,150 per week.  

PRINCIPAL SECURITY HOLDERS 

The following table sets forth the name and ownership level of each person, as of December 31, 2017,                  
who is the beneficial owner of 20% or more of the Company’s outstanding voting equity securities, calculated                 
on the basis of voting power. We have based our calculation of the percentages of voting power on 1,785,000                   
shares of the Company’s Common Stock outstanding on December 31, 2016 (1,600,000 shares of Class A                
Common Stock and 452,500 shares of Class B Common Stock), which collectively have a total of 16,452,000                 
votes.  

Name of Holder Title Number & Class of 
Securities 

% of Voting Power Prior 
to Offering 

Robert Smith III Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer 

and Secretary 

1,600,000 shares of 
Class A Common 
Stock 

97.25% 

As a result of his ownership of the Class A Common Stock, which has 10 votes per share, Mr. Smith                    
has the power to control the vote of shareholders of the Company, and therefore the other shareholders of the                   
Company you will have no effective right to control the operations or actions of the Company. 

Mr. Pena holds no securities of the Company nor does he have any rights to acquire such securities.  

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Company has not entered into any related party transactions, other than the employment of Mr.                
Pena as described above by a subsidiary of the Company. Should we enter into an affiliated transaction in the                   
future, we intend that it will be made or entered into on terms that are no less favorable to us than those that                       
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can be obtained from any unaffiliated third party. 

OUR SECURITIES 

The Company has authorized three classes of shares:  

● Class A Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of which there are 5,000,000 shares authorized,                
with 1,600,000 shares issued and outstanding as of the date of this offering statement.  

● Class B Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of which there are 45,000,000 shares authorized,                
with 185,000 shares issued and outstanding as of the date of this offering statement.  

● Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share, of which there are 10,000,000 shares authorized, with no                
shares issued and outstanding as of the date of this offering statement.  

The Class A Common Stock carries superior voting privileges of 10:1 relative to Class B Common                
Stock. As of each December 31, 2015 and 2014, Mr. Smith held 1,600,000 shares of Class A Common Stock                   
of the 5,000,000 shares authorized.  

Class B Common Stock includes all rights and privileges of Class A Common Stock except for the                 
superior voting rights held by Class A Common Stock. As of each December 31, 2015 and 2014, 45,000,000                  
shares of Class B Common Stock were authorized and 335,000 were issued and outstanding.  

The Class A Common Stock and the Class B Common Stock are referred to collectively herein as the                  
“Common Stock.” 

Common Stock 

Voting Rights. The holders of shares of Class A Common Stock are entitled to ten votes for each                  
share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders, and the holders of shares of Class                     
B Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of                      
the stockholders.  

Dividends. Subject to preferences that may be granted to any then outstanding shares of Preferred               
Stock hereafter issued, holders of shares of Common Stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends as                 
may be declared by the Board of Directors of the Company out of funds legally available therefor. The                  
payment of dividends on the shares of Common Stock will be a business decision to be made by the Board                    
from time to time based upon results of our operations and our financial condition and any other factors that                   
our board of directors considers relevant. Payment of dividends on shares of Common Stock may be restricted                 
by law and by loan agreements, indentures and other transactions entered into by us from time to time. 

Absence of Other Rights or Assessments. Holders of shares of Common Stock have no preferential,               
preemptive, conversion or exchange rights. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to               
shares of Common Stock. When issued in accordance with our Articles of Incorporation and the Georgia                
Business Corporation Code, shares of Common Stock will be fully paid and not liable to further calls or                  
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assessment by us. 

Preferred Stock 

Preferred shares carry no voting rights but have distribution preference in the event of liquidation.  

The Board of Directors shall be authorized by our Certificate of Incorporation to establish classes or                
series of preferred stock and fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each such                  
class or series and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof without any further vote or action by                 
our stockholders. Any preferred stock so designated and issued may have priority over Common Stock with                
respect to voting, dividend or liquidation rights, as determined by the Board of Directors. Any future issuance                 
of shares of preferred stock may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in our control                   
without further action by holders of shares of preferred stock and may adversely affect the voting and other                  
rights of the holders of shares of Common Stock. At present, we have no plans to issue any shares of                    
Preferred Stock or to adopt any new series, preferences or other classification of Preferred Stock, but we may                  
decide to do so in the future. The Board presently does not intend to seek stockholder approval prior to the                    
issuance of currently authorized shares, unless otherwise required by law. If and to the extent our Articles of                  
Incorporation is amended or restated in the future, the Board’s authority to issue such stock and establish                 
additional classes or series of Preferred Stock without stockholder approval may be limited. 

Bylaws 

The Company has adopted customary Bylaws for a Georgia corporation. 

The foregoing description of the Company’s securities, as well as references to the terms and               
provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and the Company’s Bylaws, should in no way be relied upon as                  
complete, and are qualified in their entirety by the actual documents referenced, copies of which shall be                 
furnished upon request. 

Transfer Agent and Registrar 

StartEngine Secure is the Company’s transfer agent for our shares of Class B Common Stock. 

RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER 

The securities being offered may not be transferred by any purchaser of such securities during the one                 
year period beginning when the securities were issued, unless such securities are transferred: 

● to the Company; 

● to an accredited investor (as defined below in “Plan of Distribution”); 

● as part of an offering registered with the SEC; or 

● to a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to                    
a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in                    
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connection with the death or divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance. 

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 

We are offering a minimum of 5,867 shares of Class B Common Stock (the “Target Offering                
Amount”) and a maximum of 234,741 shares of Class B Common Stock (the “Maximum Offering Amount”)                
on a “best efforts” basis. If the Target Offering Amount is not reached on or before July 20, 2018 (the                    
“Minimum Offering Period”), all subscriptions will be refunded to subscribers without deduction or interest.              
If the Target Offering Amount has been deposited prior to the end of the Minimum Offering Period, the                  
offering may continue until the earlier of December 15, 2018 (which date may be extended at our option) or                   
the date when all shares have been sold (the “Offering Period”). At any time during the Offering Period, the                   
Company may accept and finalize your investment. 

The Startengine.com website will be the exclusive means by which prospective investors may             
subscribe in this offering. All interested investors will receive a series of comprehensive educational emails               
explaining the entire process and procedures for subscribing in the offering and “what to expect” on the                 
Startengine.com website. The email strategy will be supported with a press release to general and financial                
media, plus social media posts on the Website. During the Offering Period, interested investors will be able to                  
log into the Startengine.com website using their credentials (username and password) established during the              
reservation process, and a button will appear that simply states “Invest” in the Company. 

Once the “Invest” button is clicked, interested investors will again be given a comprehensive              
overview of the process and procedures, which will require an e-signature. Interested investors will then begin                
a user-friendly process of establishing their personal and financial identity, selecting the number of shares of                
Class B Common Stock to be purchased and how payment will be made, and executing subscription                
agreements. Once complete, all purchasers will be emailed a confirmation. 

If the minimum contingency for this offering is not satisfied or the offering is otherwise terminated,                
investor funds will be promptly refunded. 

In order to subscribe to purchase the shares of Class B Common Stock, a prospective investor must                 
complete a subscription agreement and send payment by wire transfer or ACH. Investors must answer certain                
questions to determine compliance with the investment limitation set forth in Rule 100 of Regulation               
Crowdfunding under the Securities Act, which states that the aggregate purchase price to be paid by the                 
investor for the securities cannot exceed: 

● The greater of $2,200 or 5% of the lesser of such investor’s annual income or net worth, if 
either the investor’s annual income or net worth is less than $107,000; or

● 10% of such investor’s annual income or net worth (not to exceed an amount sold of
$107,000), if both the annual income and net worth of the investor is $107,000 or more. 

A person’s annual income and net worth may be calculated jointly with that person’s spouse;               
however, when such a joint calculation is used, the aggregate investment of the investor spouses may not                 
exceed the limit that would apply to an individual investor at that income or net worth level. In the case of an                      
investor who is not a natural person, revenues or net assets for the investor’s most recently completed fiscal                  
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year are used instead. 

We have engaged StartEngine Capital LLC, (“StartEngine”) to serve as the intermediary through             
which the offering will be conducted. StartEngine is a registered intermediary with the SEC. They charge a                 
5% total fee on all funds raised. The Company and the Investor, 2.5% each, or $0.1065 each per share of                    
Class B Common Stock, will pay the StartEngine fee, and thus this surcharge of $0.1065 per share to be paid                    
by the Investor will be added to the share price. We will pay StartEngine an estimated $3,500 if we only raise                     
the Target Offering Amount and $50,000 if we raise the Maximum Offering Amount. 

Company executives and contractors are assisting with preparing the materials sent via email to              
persons who have submitted non-binding indications of interest and posted on the Company’s website. They               
also work with Startengine.com in developing the programming to be used for the actual investment process.                
They do not have direct telephone, email exchanges or other contact with persons interested in purchasing the                 
offered securities, except to gather additional information or clarification from persons who have subscribed              
to purchase securities on the Startengine.com website. 

CANCELLING AN INVESTMENT COMMITMENT 

Investors may cancel an investment commitment until 48 hours prior to end of the Minimum Offering                
Period. will notify investors when the Target Offering Amount has been met. If we reach the Target Offering                  
Amount Prior to end of the Minimum Offering Period, we may close the offering early if we provide notice                   
about the new offering deadline at least five business days prior to such new offering deadline (absent a                  
material change that would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the investment               
commitment). If an investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the 48-hour period prior to the                 
Minimum Offering Period, the funds will be released to the Company upon closing of the offering and the                  
investor will receive securities in exchange for his or her investment. 

If an investor does not reconfirm his or her investment commitment after a material change is made to                  
the offering, the investor’s investment commitment will be cancelled and the committed funds will be               
returned. 

ONGOING REPORTING 

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the report on its website                  
at www.alkanetruckcompany.com/investor not later than 120 days after the end of each fiscal year covered by                
the report. The Company has not previously failed to comply with any ongoing reporting requirements of the                 
SEC. 

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until: 

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) it has filed at least one annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and has fewer than               
300 holders of record and has total assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;
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(3) it has filed at least three annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding; 

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the                 
Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of               
redeemable securities; or 

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law. 

PRIOR OFFERINGS 

In the three years prior to this offering, the Company has completed the following exempt offerings of                 
its securities: 

Date of Offering Exemption 
Replied Upon 

Securities Offered Amount Sold Use of Proceeds 

January 2017 - 
Present (this 
offering) 

Section 4(a)(6) of 
the Securities Act 
of 1933 

Class B Common 
Stock 

$109,469* To purchase 
inventory 

November 10, 
2016 

Section 4(a)(2) of 
the Securities Act 
of 1933, as 
amended 

Promissory Note** $2,013,845 R&D Class 7 
Trucks, DOT 
Compliance, 
Prototypes 
Development 

June 8, 2016 Section 4(a)(2) of 
the Securities Act 
of 1933, as 
amended/Rule 506 

94,000 shares of 
Class B Common 
Stock 

$400,000 Purchase of: 
12 Class 7 Gliders  
3 Agrale Gliders 
1 6.0 Engine PSI 
Triad Dominator  

* The amount of securities sold does not reflect the 5% fee paid to StartEngine. The Company and the                   
Investor, 2.5% each, or $0.1065 each per share of Class B Common Stock, will pay the StartEngine fee, and                   
thus this surcharge of $0.1065 per share to be paid by the Investor will be added to the share price.  

** This Promissory Note was entered into to evidence prior funds that had been loaned to the                 
Company by Mr. Smith, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, in prior periods, but for which no                
promissory notes or other agreements had been executed.  

Other than as set forth above, there have been no transactions since the beginning of the Company’s                 
last fiscal year, and there are no currently proposed transaction, to which the Company was or is to be a party                     
and the amount involved exceeds five percent of the aggregate amount of capital raised by the Company in                  
reliance on section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act (15 U.S.C. 77d(a)(6)) during the preceding 12-month period,                
inclusive of the amount the Company seeks to raise in the current offering under section 4(a)(6) of the                  
Securities Act, in which any of the following persons had or is to have a direct or indirect material interest: 

(1) Any director or officer of the Company; 

 
23 

 

https://www.govregs.com/uscode/15/77d


 

(2) Any person who is as of the date of this offering statement, the beneficial owner of 20% or more                    
of the Company’s outstanding voting equity securities, calculated on the basis of voting power; or 

(3) Any member of the family of any of the foregoing persons. 

RISK FACTORS 

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering unless you                
can afford to lose your entire investment.  

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the                 
terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not been               
recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority.             
Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.  

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities offered                
or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering                  
document or literature.  

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and              
Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt             
from registration. 

Risks Relating to the Company 

Because of their significant ownership, our principal shareholder may be able to exert control over us and                 
our significant corporate decisions. 

The concentration of ownership that the President, Bob Smith, has in the company may harm the market                 
price of our Class B Common Stock by, among other things: 

● Delaying, deferring, or preventing a change in control of our Company or changes to our Board of                 
Directors;  

● Impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover, or other business combination involving our Company;  
● Causing us to enter into transactions or agreements that are not in the best interests of all                 

stockholders; or  
● Discouraging a potential acquirer from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to obtain              

control of our Company. 

Early Stage Business 

While the Company was formed in 2011, the Company has only a limited history upon which an                 
evaluation of its prospects and future performance can be made. The Company’s proposed operations are               
subject to all business risks associated with new enterprises. The likelihood of the Company’s success must                
be considered in light of the problems, expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays frequently             
encountered in connection with the expansion of a business, operation in a competitive industry, and the                
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continued development of advertising, promotions and a corresponding customer base. There is a possibility              
that the Company could sustain losses in the future. There can be no assurances that the Company will ever                   
operate profitably. 

Inadequacy of Funds 

The Shares are offered on a “best efforts” basis. The Company may have inadequate funds to fully                 
develop its business and may need debt financing or other capital investment to fully implement the                
Company’s business plans. 

We will be dependent on our management team for the growth and development of our Company. 

We currently have 3 executives in place and expect it may be some time before a full management                  
team is in place. The recruitment of key personnel will be critical to our success. Our CEO, EVPs, and other                    
senior managers will play a primary role in creating and developing our current business model, and securing                 
much of our material property rights and related assets, as well as the means to make and distribute our                   
current products. We will be highly dependent on this team for the implementation of our business plan and                  
the future development of our assets and our business, and the loss of any key member of the senior team’s                    
services to and leadership of our Company would likely materially adversely impact the Company. We               
presently do not expect to have key man insurance for our senior manager(s). For more information about the                  
responsibilities “and individuals of the management team please see “Directors of the Company” beginning              
on page 16 and “Officers of the Company” beginning on page 16. 

Customer Base and Market Acceptance 

While the Company believes it can grow the existing customer base, and develop a new customer                
base through customer outreach, the inability of the Company to further develop such a customer base could                 
have a material adverse effect on the Company. Although the Company believes that its products offer                
advantages over those of competitive companies, no assurance can be given that our products will attain a                 
degree of market acceptance on a sustained basis or that it will generate revenues sufficient for sustained                 
profitable operations. 

Unanticipated Obstacles to Execution of the Business Plan 

The Company’s business plans may change significantly. Many of our potential business endeavors             
are capital intensive and may be subject to statutory or regulatory requirements. Management believes that               
the Company’s chosen activities and strategies are achievable in light of current economic and legal               
conditions with the skills, background, and knowledge of the Company’s principals and advisors.             
Management reserves the right to make significant modifications to the Company’s stated strategies             
depending on future events. 

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds 

The net proceeds from this offering will be used to for the purposes described under “Use of                 
Proceeds”. The Company reserves the right to use the funds obtained from this offering for other purposes                 
not presently contemplated which it deems to be in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders to                   
address changed circumstances or opportunities, including general corporate purposes. As a result of the              
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foregoing, the success of the Company will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of                
management with respect to application and allocation of the net proceeds of this offering. Investors for the                 
Shares offered hereby will be entrusting their funds to the Company’s management, upon whose judgment               
and discretion the investors must depend. 

Return of Profits 

The Company intends to retain any initial future earnings to fund operations and expand the               
Company’s business. The Company’s management will determine a profit distribution plan based upon the              
Company’s results of operations, financial condition, capital requirements, and other circumstances.  

General economic conditions 

The financial success of the Company will be sensitive to adverse changes in general economic               
conditions in the United States, such as recession, inflation, unemployment, and interest rates. Such changing               
conditions could reduce demand in the marketplace for the Company’s products. Management believes that              
mainstream market acceptance and the targeted product line of the Company will help insulate the Company                
from possible reduced demand.  Nevertheless, the Company has no control over these changes. 

We may participate in strategic transactions that could impact our liquidity, increase our expenses and               
distract our management. 

From time to time we may consider strategic transactions, such as acquisitions of companies, and               
asset purchases. Additional potential transactions we may consider include a variety of different business              
arrangements, including strategic partnerships, joint ventures, spin-offs, restructurings, divestitures, business          
combinations and investments. In addition, another entity may pursue us or certain of our assets or aspects of                  
our operations as an acquisition target. Any such transactions may require us to incur charges specific to the                  
transaction and not incident to our operations, may increase our near and long-term expenditures, may pose                
significant integration challenges, and may require us to hire or otherwise engage personnel with additional               
expertise, any of which could harm our operations and financial results. Such transactions may also entail                
numerous other operational and financial risks, including, among others, exposure to unknown liabilities,             
disruption of our business and diversion of our management’s time and attention in order to develop acquired                 
products, technologies or businesses. 

As part of our efforts to complete any significant transaction, we would need to expend significant                
resources to conduct business, legal and financial due diligence, with the goal of identifying and evaluating                
material risks involved in the transaction. Despite our efforts, we may be unsuccessful in ascertaining or                
evaluating all such risks and, as a result, we may not realize the expected benefits of any such transaction,                   
whether due to unidentified risks, integration difficulties, regulatory setbacks or other events, and we may               
incur material liabilities for the past activities of acquired businesses. If any of these events were to occur, we                   
could be subject to significant costs and damage to our reputation and our business, results of operations and                  
financial condition could be adversely affected. 

Auditor’s Opinion Expresses Doubt About the Company’s Ability to Continue as a “Going Concern” 

 The independent auditor’s report on our December 31, 2016 consolidated financial statements states             
that the Company’s historical losses and accumulated deficiency raise substantial doubts about the             
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Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, due to the losses incurred and deficiency. If we are unable                   
to develop our business, we will have to reduce, discontinue operations or cease to exist, which would be                  
detrimental to the value of the Company’s Common Stock. We can make no assurances that our business                 
operations will develop and provide us with significant cash to continue operations. 

We will need additional capital in order to continue operating our business, and such additional funds may                 
not be available when needed, on acceptable terms, or at all. 

We will need significant additional capital to execute our business plan and fund our proposed               
business operations. Additionally, our plans for this period may change, our estimates of our operating               
expenses and working capital requirements could be inaccurate, we may pursue strategic transactions that              
involve one-time expenditures or we may experience growth more quickly or on a larger scale than we expect,                  
any of which may result in the depletion of capital resources more rapidly than anticipated and could require                  
us to seek additional financing earlier than we expect to support our operations. 

We may seek to obtain additional capital through additional equity or debt financings, funding from               
corporate partnerships or licensing arrangements, sales or assets or other financing transactions. If additional              
capital is not available when necessary and on acceptable terms, we may need to forego pursuit of potentially                  
valuable development or acquisition opportunities, we may not be able to continue to operate our business                
pursuant to our business plan or we may be forced to discontinue our operations entirely. If we issue equity                   
or convertible debt securities to raise additional funds, our existing stockholders may experience substantial              
dilution, and the newly issued equity or debt securities may have more favorable terms or rights, preferences                 
and privileges senior to those of our existing stockholders. If we raise additional funds through collaboration                
and licensing arrangements or sales of assets, we may be required to relinquish potentially valuable rights to                 
our product candidates or technologies, or grant licenses on terms that are not favorable to us. If we raise                   
funds by incurring debt, we may be required to pay significant interest expenses and our leverage relative to                  
our earnings or to our equity capitalization may increase. Obtaining commercial loans, assuming those loans               
would be available, would increase our liabilities and future cash commitments and may impose restrictions               
on our activities, such as financial or operational covenants with which we must comply. Further, we may                 
incur substantial costs in pursuing future capital or financing transactions, including investment banking fees,              
legal fees, accounting fees, printing and distribution expenses and other costs. We may also be required to                 
recognize non-cash expenses in connection with certain securities we may issue, such as options, convertible               
notes and warrants, which would adversely impact our financial results. 

If we are unable to establish, train and maintain an effective sales and marketing infrastructure, we will                 
not be able to commercialize our product candidates successfully. 

We expect to build an internal sales and marketing infrastructure to implement our business plan. We                
will need to expend significant resources to further establish and grow this internal infrastructure and properly                
train sales personnel with respect to legal compliance matters. We may also choose to engage third parties to                  
provide sales and marketing services for us, either in place of or to supplement our internal commercialization                 
infrastructure. We may not be able to secure sales personnel or relationships with third-party sales               
organizations that are adequate in number or expertise to successfully market and sell our products and                
services. Further, any third-party organizations we may seek to engage may not be able to provide sales and                  
marketing services in accordance with our expectations and standards, may be more expensive than we can                
afford or may not be available on otherwise acceptable terms or at all. If we are unable to establish and                    
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maintain compliant and adequate sales and marketing capabilities, through our own internal infrastructure or              
third-party services, we may be unable to sell our products or services or generate revenue. 

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report our                    
financial results. 

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports. If we cannot               
provide reliable financial reports, our operating results could be misstated, our reputation may be harmed and                
the trading price of our stock could decline. Our controls over financial processes and reporting may not                 
continue to be effective, or we may identify material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal                
controls in the future. Any failure to remediate any future material weaknesses or implement required new or                 
improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation, could harm our operating results, cause              
us to fail to meet our reporting obligations or result in material misstatements in our financial statements or                  
other public disclosures. Inferior internal controls could also cause investors to lose confidence in our               
reported financial information, which could have a negative effect on the trading price of our stock.  

Industry-Related Risk Factors 

Competition 

The Company faces competition from many other companies, many of whom are better capitalized              
than the Company, and whose management has more experience than the management of the Company. The                
competitors include Ford, Chevrolet, Dodge, GMC, Toyota, Nissan, Honda, Freightliner, Hino, Kenworth,            
Volvo, Mack, Western Star, International and Peterbuilt.  

These competitors and their actions may limit the Company’s ability to attract new customers or keep                
current customers, may limit the possible expansion of the Company’s operations and product offerings, and               
may cause the Company to have to sell our products and services for less than we would otherwise be able to,                     
any of which effects may adversely affect our results of operations.  

Our business is significantly impacted by state and federal rules and regulations. 

The company is subject to federal and state rules and regulations. It may take considerable capital to                 
comply with state and federal regulations. If the company fails to comply with state and federal regulations, it                  
could risk sanctions. 

If we become subject to product liability claims and our product liability insurance coverage is inadequate                
or inapplicable, we may be required to engage in costly litigation or pay significant damages and our                 
business may be harmed.  

Product users may sue us if any of the products that we sell are defective, fail to perform properly or                    
injure the user. We have limited experience in the sale of products and the development of relationships with                  
manufacturers or suppliers of such products. Although, when practical, agreements are expected to contain              
provisions intended to limit its exposure to liability claims, these limitations may not prevent all potential                
claims. We may be exposed to liability claims in connection with the products we provide. Liability claims                 
could require us to spend significant time and money in litigation and to pay significant damages. As a result,                   
these claims, whether or not successful, could seriously damage our reputation and business. We may not                
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have sufficient coverage for liability claims. 

Information in this offering statement regarding our operations and expansion reflects our current intent              
and is subject to change.  

Investors should understand that our plans regarding our operations and expansion thereof are subject              
to change. We describe our current expansion plans in this offering statement; whether we ultimately               
undertake our expansion plans will depend on the following factors, among others: 

● The availability and cost of capital; 
● Current and future prices for our products and services; 
● The costs and availability of equipment, supplies and personnel necessary to conduct these             

operations; 
● Changes in the estimates of the costs to expand; and, 
● Decisions of operators and joint venture partners. 

 

Risks Relating to this Offering 

Offering Price 

The price of the Shares offered has been arbitrarily established by the Company, considering such               
matters as the state of the Company’s business development and the general condition of the industry in                 
which it operates. The offering price bears little relationship to the assets, net worth, or any other objective                  
criteria of value applicable to the Company. 

Dilution 

Purchasers of Shares will experience immediate and substantial dilution of net tangible book value.              
Additional Shares issued by the Company in the future will also dilute a purchaser’s investment in the Shares. 

You can’t easily resell the securities.  

The shares being sold in this offering are “restricted,” which means you can’t resell them freely (and                 
you might need to pay a lawyer if you do resell them). More importantly, there is no market for these                    
securities, and there might never be one. It’s unlikely that the company will ever go public or get acquired by                    
a bigger company. That means the money you paid for these securities could be tied up for a long time.  

 

Compliance with Securities Laws 

The Shares are being offered for sale in reliance upon certain exemptions from the registration               
requirements of the Securities Act and other applicable state securities laws. If the sale of Shares were to fail                   
to qualify for these exemptions, purchasers may seek rescission of their purchases of Shares. If a number of                  
purchasers were to obtain rescission, the Company would face significant financial demands, which could              
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adversely affect the Company as a whole, as well as any non-rescinding purchasers. 

Long-Term Nature of Investment 

An investment in the Shares may be long term and illiquid. As discussed above, the offer and sale of                   
the Shares may not be registered under the Securities Act or any foreign or state securities laws by reason of                    
exemptions from such registration, which depends in part on the investment intent of the investors.               
Prospective investors will be required to represent in writing that they are purchasing the Shares and the                 
Shares for their own account for long-term investment and not with a view towards resale or distribution.                 
Accordingly, purchasers of Shares must be willing and able to bear the economic risk of their investment for                  
an indefinite period of time. It is likely that investors will not be able to liquidate their investment in the event                     
of an emergency. 

We may use the proceeds of this offering to pay for our expenses even if our operations are terminated and                    
this means you may lose your entire investment.  

Any funds raised in this offering may be used immediately for our incurred expenses, even if we are                  
later unable to complete our business plan. If this occurs, you may not receive your entire investment back                  
because either we have used it to pay for offering costs or we have decided to liquidate and, under applicable                    
law, we are required to pay for other debts and liabilities of the company. You may lose your entire                   
investment. 

 

Litigation 

The Company is not a party to any litigation.  

GENERALLY, IN ADDITION TO THE ABOVE RISKS, BUSINESSES ARE OFTEN SUBJECT           
TO RISKS NOT FORESEEN OR FULLY APPRECIATED BY MANAGEMENT. IN REVIEWING THIS            
INVESTMENT, POTENTIAL INVESTORS SHOULD KEEP IN MIND OTHER POSSIBLE RISKS THAT           
COULD BE IMPORTANT. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

We estimate that, at a per share Class B Common Stock price of $4.26, the net proceeds from the sale                    
of the 234,741 shares of Class B Common Stock in this offering will be approximately $926,000 (if the                  
Maximum Offering Amount is sold) after deducting the estimated offering expenses of approximately             
$74,000. 21,712 shares of Class B Common Stock have been sold as part of this offering as of December 31,                    
2017, . 

We expect to use the net proceeds as follows: 

 
 If Target Offering 

Amount Sold** 
If Maximum Offering 

Amount Sold 
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Gross Proceeds $24,993.42 $999,996.66 

Less: Offering Expenses 

a. StartEngine Fees (2.5% of 5% total fee) $1,250 $50,000 

b. FundAmerica Fees(1) $1,200 $4,000 

c. Professional Fees(2) $20,000 $20,000 

Net Proceeds $2,543.42 $925,996.66 
Uses of Net Proceeds 

a. Production $0 $427,226.66 

b. Marketing $2,543.42 $75,000 

c. Salaries and General Admin $0 $130,520 

d. Working Capital(3) $0 $239,000 

e. Professional Fees $0 $22,000 

f. Intellectual Property $0 $32,250 

Total Uses $2,543.42 $925,996.66 
*Figures rounded to the nearest whole number, columns may not add due to the rounding.

** The use of proceeds from this offering was consistent with the expected Use of Net Proceeds. 

(1) FundAmerica’s fees will vary based on the total number of investors and the method of each               
investor’s payment.

(2) Includes estimated legal, accounting and marketing expenses associated with the Offering.

(3) A portion of working capital will be used for tooling required for manufacturing.

The foregoing information is an estimate based on our current business plan. We may find it                
necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we                  
will have broad discretion in doing so. 

We may also use proceeds in an irregular way, which may include, but are not limited to, the                  
following: vendor fees and salaries and/or expenses paid to the Company’s directors or officers or their                
friends or family, any “administration expenses” that are not strictly for administrative purposes, any “travel               
and entertainment” expenses, and any repayment of inter-company debt or back payments; provided however,              
that the foregoing fees or expenses, as applicable, exceed $10,000. 
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Clear Accounting Solutions LLC 
4612 Oleander Drive, Myrtle Beach, SC 29577 

843-536-0343 
info@clear-acct.com 

To the Stockholders of Alkane Truck 
Company  

Myrtle Beach, South Carolina 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT 

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Alkane Truck Company (the “Company”) and 
its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity (deficiency), and cash flows for the years then 
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical 
procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of company management. A review is substantially less 
in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a 
whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

Accountant’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review 
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require us to 
perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material 
modifications that should be made to the consolidated financial statements for them to be in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a 
reasonable basis for our conclusion. 

Accountant’s Conclusion 

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Going Concern 

As discussed in Note 9, certain conditions indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going concern. The 
accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary should the 
Company be unable to continue as a going concern. 

Clear Accounting Solutions LLC 

 
Clear Accounting Solutions LLC 

  April 27, 2017

           Jessica Walden



 

 

Alkane Truck Company and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015 
 
 2016  2015 
ASSETS    
Current Assets:    
Cash and equivalents $63,970   $29,833  
Accounts receivable $415,166   $91,010  
Inventory $886,182   $833,004  

Total Current Assets $1,365,318   $953,847  
Property and equipment, net $11,515   $12,880  
TOTAL ASSETS $1,376,833   $966,727  

    
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)    
Current Liabilities:    
Accounts payable $213,206   $213,206  
Due to related parties $3,462,138   $2,492,454  
Deferred revenue $11,800   $11,800  

     Total Current Liabilities $3,687,144   $2,717,460  
Non-Current Liabilities:    
Notes payable $1,754,240   $1,923,673  
     Total Non-Current Liabilities $5,441,384   $4,641,133  
Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency):    

Preferred stock, $0.001 par, 10,000,000 shares authorized, 0 shares 
issued and outstanding at each December 31, 2016 and 2015. 

   

Common stock, Class A, $0.001 par, 5,000,000 shares authorized, 
1,600,000 shares issued and outstanding at each December 31, 2016 and 
2015. $1,600   $1,600  

Common stock, Class B, $0.001 par, 45,000,000 shares authorized, 
452,500 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 335,000 
shares issued and outstanding at each December 31,2015. 

$453  

 

$335  
Additional paid-in capital $632,069   $132,187  
Accumulated deficit ($4,698,673)  ($3,808,528) 

Total Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency) ($4,064,551)  ($3,674,406) 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $1,376,833   $966,727  

(DEFICIENY)    
 
 

 
See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of 

these consolidated financial statements. 
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Alkane Truck Company and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Operations 
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 
 
 
 
 
	
	
	

 2016  2015 

     

Revenues  251,995   221,160  
Cost of Goods Sold  (175,007)  (269,414) 
Gross Profit (Loss)  76,988   (48,254) 

     

Operating Expenses:     

Research and development  42,273   359,545  
General  and administrative  192,122   256,401  
Compensation and benefits  198,217   211,878  
Professional services  115,169   160,171  
Sales and marketing  215,748   12,114  
Depreciation and amortization  8,803   3,677  
Total  Operating Expenses  772,332   1,003,786  

     

Loss from operations  (695,344)  (1,052,040) 
   

 
 

Other Expenses:    

Interest expense  (194,801) (102,087) 
Total  Other Expenses  (194,801)  (102,087) 

     

Net Loss  (890,145)  (1,154,127) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of 

these consolidated financial statements. 
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Alkane Truck Company and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficiency) 
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 
 
 
 
	 Preferred Stock  Common Stock - Class A 

        
        

 Number of 
Shares  Amount  Number of 

Shares  Amount 
        
Balance at December 31, 2014     1,600,000  $1,600  

            
Balance at December 31, 2015     1,600,000  $1,600 

            
Balance at December 31, 2016       1,600,000  $1,600  

 
	 Common Stock - Class B 

    
    

 Number of Shares  Amount 
    
Balance at December 31, 2014 335,000  $335  

      

Balance at December 31, 2015 335,000  $335  

      
Balance at December 31, 2016 452,500  $453  

 
	     Total 

 Additional    Stockholders' 
 Paid-In  Accumulated  Equity 
 Capital  Deficit  (Deficiency) 
      

Balance at December 31, 2014 $132,187   ($2,654,401)  (2,520,279) 
Net Loss    ($1,154,127)  (1,154,127) 

Balance at December 31, 2015 $132,187  ($3,808,528)  (3,674,406) 
Net Loss    ($890,145)  (890,145) 

Balance at December 31, 2016 $632,069   ($4,698,673)  (4,064,551) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of 
these consolidated financial statements. 

-4- 



 

 

Alkane Truck Company and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 
 
	 2016  2015 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities  

Net Loss ($890,145)  ($1,154,127) 
Depreciation $8,803   $3,677  
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash 

used in operating activities:    

Change in receivables ($324,156)  ($91,010) 
Change in inventory ($53,178)  $170,531  
Change in payables and accrued expenses $0   $225,006  

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities ($1,258,676)  ($845,923) 
    

Cash Flows From Investing Activities    

Purchases of property and equipment ($7,438)  ($2,875) 
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities ($7,438)  ($2,875) 

      
Cash Flows From Financing Activities    

Change in Shareholder Equity $500,000    

Borrowings on notes payable, net of repayments ($169,433)  $643,663  
Related party advances, net of repayments $969,684   $231,788  

Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities $1,300,251   $875,451  
    

Net Change In Cash $34,137   $26,653  
    

Cash at Beginning of Period $29,833   $3,180  
Cash at End of Period $63,970   $29,833  

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow 
Information:    

Cash paid for interest $194,801   $102,087  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of 

these consolidated financial statements. 
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Alkane Truck Company and Subsidiaries 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
As of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 
 
 

Note 1.  Nature of Operations 
 

Alkane Truck Company (the “Company”), formerly known as Noble Automotive Group, Inc., is a 
corporation formed under the laws of Georgia on June 24, 2011. Prior to the name change, Noble 
Automotive Group, Inc. (a Georgia corporation) owned three wholly-owned subsidiaries: Vision 
Motor Company (a Delaware corporation), Valor Motor Company (a Delaware corporation), and 
Alkane Truck Company (a Georgia Corporation). 

 
Effective December 30, 2015, Valor Motor Company and Alkane Truck Company merged into Noble 
Automotive Group, Inc. On December 30, 2015, Noble Automotive Group, Inc. changed its name to 
Alkane Truck Company. Since December 30, 2015, the entity operates as Alkane Truck Company 
and has one wholly-owned subsidiary, Vision Motor Company (a Delaware corporation), which does 
not currently have operations. 

 
The Company engages in the development of alternative fuel vehicle technologies and the sale of 
its vehicles. 

 
As of December 31, 2015, the Company has only recently commenced planned principal operations. 
The Company is dependent upon additional capital resources for expansion to its planned full scale 
operations and is subject to significant risks and uncertainties; including failing to secure additional 
funding to operationalize the Company’s planned operations. 
 
As of December 31, 2016 the Company is dependent on securing additional sales to fund 
operations.  The Company has secured 103 dealership locations with a minimum purchase 
requirement of two vehicles per month to retain the dealership territory. 
 
Note 2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Principles of Consolidation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Alkane Truck 
Company as well as its subsidiaries required to be consolidated under accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). Significant intercompany accounts 
and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation. 

 
Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and 
conform to the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). 
Therefore, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

 
 
 

See accompanying Individual Accountant’s Review Report 
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Alkane Truck Company and Subsidiaries 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
As of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 
 

 
The Company has elected to adopt early application of Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 
2014-10, Development Stage Entities (“Topic 915”): Elimination of Certain Financial Reporting 
Requirements. The Company does not present or disclose inception-to-date information and other  
remaining disclosure requirements of Topic 915. 

The Company has adopted the calendar year-end for its fiscal year-end. 

Management's Estimates 

Preparing the Company’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting  period.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

 
Non-Controlling Interests 

In accordance with the guidance under Topic 810, Noncontrolling Interests, in consolidated financial 
statements, references to net income and stockholders’ equity attributable to the Company do not 
include non-controlling interests, which are reported separately. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
the Company’s subsidiaries were wholly-owned and therefore were not subject to non-controlling 
interests. 

 
Cash and Equivalents 

The Company considers deposits that can be redeemed on demand and investments that have 
original maturities of less than three months, when purchased, to be cash equivalents. 

 
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Accounts receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts and are periodically evaluated 
for collectability based on past credit history with clients and other factors. Provisions for losses on 
accounts receivable are determined on the basis of loss experience, known and inherent risk in the 
account balance and current economic conditions. There are no allowances for doubtful accounts 
established as of December 31, 2016 or 2015. 

 
Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or net realizable value (market) in 
accordance with Topic 330, Inventory. Cost is computed using standard cost, which approximates 
actual cost. The Company applies net realizable value and obsolescence to the gross value of the 
inventory. The Company estimates net realizable value based on estimated selling price less further 
costs to completion and disposal. The Company impairs slow-moving products by comparing  

 
 

See accompanying Individual Accountant’s Review Report 
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Alkane Truck Company and Subsidiaries 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
As of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 
 

inventories on hand to projected demand. When impairments are established, a new cost basis of  
the inventory is created. 

 
 
Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for major 
additions and improvements, defined as having a cost of $1,000 or greater, are capitalized and minor 
replacements, maintenance, and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When property and 
equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed 
from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations for the 
respective period. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives (generally 3-7 years) of  
the related assets using the straight-line method for financial statement purposes. The Company 
uses other depreciation methods (generally accelerated) for tax purposes where appropriate. 

 
Fair Value Measurements 

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidance specifies a hierarchy of valuation 
techniques  based  on  whether  the  inputs  to  those  valuation  techniques  are  observable  or 
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while 
unobservable inputs reflect market assumptions. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to 
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) 
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three levels of the fair 
value hierarchy are as follows: 

 
Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 primarily consists of 
financial instruments whose value is based on quoted market prices such as exchange-traded 
instruments and listed equities. 

 
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the  asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly (e.g., quoted prices of similar assets or liabilities in active 
markets, or quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active). 

 
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Financial instruments are considered  
Level 3 when their fair values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flows or 
similar techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable. 

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets approximate their fair value.  

Revenue Recognition 

The Company recognizes revenue when the earnings process is complete. This generally occurs  
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when products are complete and shipped to the customer in accordance with the sales agreement 
or purchase order, ownership and risk of loss pass to the customer, collectability is reasonably 
assured, and pricing is fixed or determinable. The Company’s shipping terms are generally F.O.B. 
shipping point, where title is transferred and revenue is recognized when the products are shipped 
to customers. Orders that have been placed and paid as of year-end but have not been shipped are 
recorded to deferred revenue. 

 
Federal Income Taxes 

Topic 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, clarifies the accounting for income taxes 
by prescribing the minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being 
recognized in the financial statements. Topic 740-10 also provides guidance on de-recognition, 
measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and 
transition. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, no uncertain tax positions were 
identified. The Company recognizes tax related interest and penalties, if any, as a component of 
income tax expense. 

 
The federal tax returns are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service, generally for 
three years after they are filed. State tax returns are subject to examination generally for five years 
after they are filed. 

 
The Company consolidates all wholly-owned subsidiaries into its annual tax return, resulting in no 
separate assets or liabilities for the subsidiaries. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which 
requires entities to compare the cost of inventory to only one measure, its net realizable value, and 
not the three measures required by Topic 330. This ASU is effective for fiscal reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2016, but earlier application is permitted. The Company has elected 
to early adopt the ASU and has applied the provisions of the ASU to the consolidated financial 
statements for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. 
 
In April 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board(“FASB”) issued a ASU 2016-10 Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) Topic 606 includes implementation guidance on when to 
recognize revenue for a sales-based or usage-based royalty promised in exchange for a license of 
intellectual property.  This ASU is which is not yet effective. The effective date and transition 
requirements for the amendments in this Update are the same as the effective date and transition 
requirements in Topic 606 (and any other Topic amended by Update 2014-09). Currently now for 
annual period beginning after December 15, 2016.   Management believes this topic is still in 
discussion and there may be an additional revision and therefore will wait until the effective date of 
Fiscal Year 2017. 
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In May 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board(“FASB”) issued a ASU 2016-12 Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) Topic 606 includes implementation guidance on when to 
recognize revenue for a sales-based or usage-based royalty promised in exchange for a license of 
intellectual property.  This ASU is which is not yet effective. The effective date and transition 
requirements for the amendments in this Update are the same as the effective date and transition 
requirements in Topic 606 (and any other Topic amended by Update 2014-09). Currently now for 
annual period beginning after December 15, 2016.   Management believes this topic is still in 
discussion and there may be an additional revision and therefore will wait until the effective date of 
Fiscal Year 2017. 
 
Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards 
could have a material effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. As new 
accounting pronouncements are issued, the Company will adopt those that are applicable under the 
circumstances. 

 

Note 3.  Related Parties 
 

The CEO of the Company regularly issues advances, makes purchases on behalf of the Company, 
and repays loans and related interest on behalf of the Company to fund operations. 

 
During the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the CEO paid total loan principal and interest 
of $364,234 and $206,436 on behalf of the Company, respectively. 

 
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company owed the CEO $3,690,121 and $2,698,974, 
respectively. The CEO owns another company, to which Alkane Truck Company advances funds 
and makes payments on behalf of. Amounts receivable from this company totaled $227,983 and 
$206,520 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Since these receivables and payables 
are with the same party, they have been netted to due to related parties on the balance sheet. 

 
Note 4. Inventory 

 
Inventory consisted of the following as of December 31, 2016 and 2015: 
 
	             2016         2015 

    
Raw materials $104,937  $98,640 
Work in progress $46,611   
Finished goods $734,634  $734,364 
Total inventory $886,182  $833,004 
 

 
See accompanying Individual Accountant’s Review Report 
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Note 5.  Property and Equipment 

 
Property and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31, 2016 and 2015: 
 
	 2016  2015 

    
Furniture and fixtures $14,567   $7,129  
Computers and equipment $13,775   $13,755  
Automobiles $3,000   $3,000  
Property and equipment, at cost $31,342   $23,904  
Less:  accumulated depreciation ($19,827)  ($11,024) 
Property and equipment, net $11,515   $12,880  
 
 
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized depreciation expense 
related to these costs of $8,803 and $3,677, respectively. 

 

Note 6.  Notes Payable 
 

Since 2012, Mr. Smith advanced funds to the Company, which are repayable by the Company with 
6.25% annual interest, but for which  no promissory note  or other agreement was signed at the  
time. 

 
Prior to January 1, 2015, the Company received funding from Mr. Smith of $1,568,399 and repaid 
principal of $288,389, resulting in a loan balance of $1,280,010 as of December 31, 2014. 

 
During 2015, Mr. Smith advanced the Company an additional $748,012, and Mr. Smith repaid 
principal of $104,349 on behalf of the Company, resulting in a loan balance of $1,923,673 as of 
December 31, 2015. 

 
On November 10, 2016, the Company entered into a promissory note with Mr. Smith to evidence 
the remaining outstanding amount due and payable to Mr. Smith for these funds that were  
advanced, together with interest thereon, which totaled $2,013,845. The promissory note carries 
interest at 6.25% and all amounts due thereunder are due and payable on November 10, 2020. 

 
Interest expense related to these amounts advanced by Mr. Smith totaled $194,801 and $102,087 
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, all of which was paid-in-full during 
the years incurred. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, there was no outstanding interest due on 
these loans. 

 
See accompanying Individual Accountant’s Review Report 
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Note 7.  Stockholders’ Equity (Deficiency) 

 
The Company has authorized three classes of shares: Class A Common Stock, Class B Common 
Stock, and Preferred Stock. All three classes carry a $0.001 par value and represent a total of 
60,000,000 authorized shares. 

 
Class A Common Stock are reserved for and exclusively issued to the CEO. These shares carry 
superior voting privileges of 10:1 relative to Class B Common Stock. As  of  each December 31,  
2016 and 2015, the CEO held 1,600,000 Class A shares of 5,000,000 authorized. 

 
Class B Common Stock include all rights and privileges of Class A Common Stock except for the 
superior voting rights held by Class A Common Stock. As of December 31, 2016, 45,000,000 Class 
B Shares were authorized and 452,500 were issued and outstanding.  As of  December 31, 2015, 
45,000,000 Class B shares were authorized and 335,000 were issued and outstanding. 

 
Preferred shares carry no voting rights but have distribution preference in the event of liquidation. 
As of each December 31, 2016 and 2015, 0 of the 10,000,000 authorized preferred shares were 
issued and outstanding. 
 

Note 8. Income Taxes 
 

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company did not record an income tax 
benefit because it has incurred taxable losses and has no history of generating taxable income, and 
therefore the Company cannot presently anticipate the realization of a tax benefit on its  net operating 
loss carryforward. Therefore, the Company recorded a full valuation allowance against its deferred 
tax assets of $2,016,032 and $1,136,617 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. As of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards of $3,578,294 
and $2,988,467, respectively, which will begin to expire in 2031. The Company estimates its deferred 
tax assets and liabilities using an effective blended tax rate of 38%. 

 
Under Section 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, if a 
corporation undergoes an "ownership change," the corporation's ability to use its pre-change net 
operating loss carryforwards and other pre-change attributes, such as research tax credits, to offset  
its post-change income may be limited. In general, an "ownership change" will occur if there is a 
cumulative change in our ownership by "5-percent shareholders" that exceeds 50 percentage points 
over a rolling three-year period. Utilization of the Company’s net operating loss and tax credit 
carryforwards may be subject to annual limitations due to ownership changes. Such annual 
limitations could result in the expiration of the Company’s net operating loss and tax credit 
carryforwards before utilized. The Company does not have a reserve for any uncertain tax positions, 
and management is unaware of any anticipated event in the next 12 months that could change this. 

 
 

See accompanying Individual Accountant’s Review Report 
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The Company has evaluated its income tax positions and has determined that it does not have any 
uncertain tax positions. The Company will recognize interest and penalties related to any uncertain 
tax positions through its income tax expense. 

 
The Company may in the future become subject to federal, state, and local income taxation though  
it has not been since its inception. The Company is not presently subject to any income tax audit in 
any taxing jurisdiction. 
 
Note 9. Going Concern 

 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which 
contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of 
business.  The Company has realized recurring net operating losses, which totaled $890,145 and 
$1,154,127 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, has accumulated deficits 
of $4,698,673 and $3,808,528 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and has  current 
liabilities exceeding current assets by $2,321,826 and $1,763,613 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively. The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the next twelve months is 
dependent upon its ability to generate sufficient cash flows from operations to meet its obligations 
and/or to obtain additional capital financing. No assurance can be given that the Company will be 
successful in these efforts. These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the ability of 
the Company to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. The consolidated 
financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of 
recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should 
the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. 
 

Note 10.  Subsequent Events 
 

On April 18, 2016 the Company entered into a partnership agreement with a third party.  The third 
party has agreed to assemble the vehicles of the Company for fifty percent of the net profit upon sale 
of each vehicle to the dealerships established by the Company. 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 28, 2017, the date the consolidated 
financial statements were available to be issued. Based on this evaluation, no additional material 
events were identified which require adjustment or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Platform Compensation

As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital, the issuer is required to

pay to StartEngine Capital a fee consisting of a 6-8% (six to eight percent) commission

based on the dollar amount of securities sold in the Offering and paid upon disbursement

of funds from escrow at the time of a closing. The commission is paid in cash and in

securities of the Issuer identical to those offered to the public in the Offering at the sole

discretion of StartEngine Capital. Additionally, the issuer must reimburse certain

expenses related to the Offering. The securities issued to StartEngine Capital, if any, will

be of the same class and have the same terms, conditions and rights as the securities being

offered and sold by the issuer on StartEngine Capital’s website.

Information Regarding Length of Time of Offering

Investment Cancellations: Investors will have up to 48 hours prior to the end of the

offering period to change their minds and cancel their investment commitments for any

reason. Once within 48 hours of ending, investors will not be able to cancel for any reason,

even if they make a commitment during this period.

Material Changes: Material changes to an offering include but are not limited to: A

change in minimum offering amount, change in security price, change in management,

material change to financial information, etc. If an issuer makes a material change to the

offering terms or other information disclosed, including a change to the offering deadline,

investors will be given five business days to reconfirm their investment commitment. If

investors do not reconfirm, their investment will be cancelled and the funds will be

returned.

Hitting The Target Goal Early & Oversubscriptions

StartEngine Capital will notify investors by email when the target offering amount has hit

25%, 50% and 100% of the funding goal. If the issuer hits its goal early, and the minimum

offering period of 21 days has been met, the issuer can create a new target deadline at

least 5 business days out. Investors will be notified of the new target deadline via email

and will then have the opportunity to cancel up to 48 hours before new deadline.

Oversubscriptions: We require all issuers to accept oversubscriptions. This may not be

possible if: 1) it vaults an issuer into a different category for financial statement

requirements (and they do not have the requisite financial statements); or 2) they reach

$1.07M in investments. In the event of an oversubscription, shares will be allocated at the

discretion of the issuer.

If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering

amount at the offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, investment

commitments will be cancelled and committed funds will be returned.

If a StartEngine issuer reaches its target offering amount prior to the deadline, it may

conduct an initial closing of the offering early if they provide notice of the new offering

deadline at least five business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material

change that would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the

investment commitment). StartEngine will notify investors when the issuer meets its



target offering amount. Thereafter, the issuer may conduct additional closings until the

offering deadline.

Minimum and Maximum Investment Amounts

In order to invest, to commit to an investment or to communicate on our platform, users

must open an account on StartEngine Capital and provide certain personal and non-

personal information including information related to income, net worth, and other

investments.

Investor Limitations: Investors are limited in how much they can invest on all

crowdfunding offerings during any 12-month period. The limitation on how much they

can invest depends on their net worth (excluding the value of their primary residence) and

annual income. If either their annual income or net worth is less than $107,000, then

during any 12-month period, they can invest up to the greater of either $2,200 or 5% of the

lesser of their annual income or net worth. If both their annual income and net worth are

equal to or more than $107,000, then during any 12-month period, they can invest up to

10% of annual income or net worth, whichever is less, but their investments cannot exceed

$107,000.
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